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THE SMALL SCHOOLS MULT({ ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantes)

TRUSTEES' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

The Trustees (Directors) present their annual report together with the financial statemante and suditor's report
of the charitable company for the pericd 1 September 2017 to 31 August 2018, The annval report serves the
purposes of both a Trustees' report, and a Directors' report under company law.

The Trust operates The Richard Crosse Church of England Primary School; The St. Mary's Church of England
Primary School; and The Howard Primary School in Staffordshire. The Trust entered into a funding agreament
with the Secretary of State for Education on 29 July 2015. Its academies have a combined pupil capacity of 204
and had a roll of 261 in the October 2016 Census returns. ’

Structure, governance and management
a. CONSTITUTION
The Stmall Schoots Multi Academy Trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity.

The Directors are the Trustees of The Smali Schaols Multi Academy Trust, and are also the Directors of the
charitable company for the purposes of company law

The charitable company is known as The Small Schools Multi Academy Tfuét, and the company'é
memorandum and articles of association are the pimary goveming documents of the Trust. The constituent
academies of the trust are:

. The Richard Crosse Church of England Primary Schoot
. The St. Mary'’s Church of England Primary School
. The Howard Primary School

Details of the Trustees who served during the are included in the Reference and administrative detalle on page
1.

b. MEMBERS' LIABILITY

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the
event of it being wound up while they are a member, o within one year after thay cease to be a member, such
amount as may ba required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted bafore they ceased to be
a member.

¢. TRUSTEES® INDEMNITIES

The Trust purchases indemnity Jnsurance to cover the liablity of Trustees which by virtue of any rule of law
would otherwise attach to them in respect of any negligence, default or breach of Trust, or breach of duty, of
which they may be guilly in relation fo the Trust; provided that any insurance shall not axtend to any claim
arising from any act or omission which the Trustees knew to be a breach of Trust or breach of duty, or which
was commitled by the Trustees in reckless disregard fo whether it was a breach of Trust or breach of duty or
not, and provided also that any such insurance shali not extand fo the costs of any unsuccessful defence to &
criminal prosecution brought against the Directors in their capacity as Directars of the Trust.

As part of the overall insurance cover taken out with Zurich, the Trust has taken out insurance ralating to
Directors’ Indemnity. The limit of Indernity cover is £ 5,000,000 in ihis respect.
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THE SMALL SCHOOLS MULT] ACADEMY TRUST
{A company lImited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT {continued}
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

d. METHOD OF RECRUITMENT AND APPOINTMENT OR EEECTION OF TRUSTEES

The management of the Academy Trust is the responsibility of the Directors, who are elected and co-opted
under the terms of the Articles of Association,

The board should have the appropriate balance of skills, and knowledge of The Small Schools Mulli Academy
Trust, to enable them to discharge their respeclive duties and responsibilities effectively. The search for Board
candidates will always be conducted, and appointments made, on merit against objective criteria, and with due
regard for tha benefils of diversity on the Board, including gender, race, age, sexual orientation and religion.

Directors are recruited by invitation from the Chair of the Board of Members, the Chalr of the Board of Directors
or the Chief Executive Officer, of persons known to the Academy Trust, who are able to benefit the Academy
Trust by their knowledge and experlise. The Board of Members make the formal appeintment for an individual
to become a member of tive Board of Directors having given due consideration to their ability to be able to fulfit
at least two of the following criteria:

. Are sympalhetic to the aims and objectives of a Christian foundation for the education of children;

. Have demonstrable links to a Christian denomination that is recognised by the UK Churches Together
organisation;

. Have direct links with at least one of the communities served by the schools in the Trust,

And aiso one of the following criteria;

. Can demonstrate substantial experience that prepares them for the proposed role;

. Have never been disqualified from holding the role of company director;

. Are willing to be examined in these maiters prior to appointment by at least praviding a CV and, it
required referencas.

o, POLICIES AND PROCEDURES ADOPTED FOR THE INDUCTION AND TRAINING OF TRUSTEES

All Directors are encouraged to undertake personal training in addition to courses organised for all Directars, to
ensure that they are up to date in their knowledge and able i carry out their roles effectively. Shared inset
betweaen all of the schools in the Trust includes efements of Diractors iraining, and this is supported by external
training providers. Directars meet regulady both formally and Informally with the Chief Executive Officer and
members of school staff, and receive on a ragular basis updated copies of policies and procedures and are
ancouragead to have an input into school self-gvaiuation and improvemant planning.

f. CORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

The Board of Directors are responsible for the overall strategic direction of the Academy Trust. The Direclors
have a dufy to act in the fulfilment of the Academy Trust objects. They set the strategic direclion, and determine
the policies and procedures of the Academy Trust, whilst holding each school within the Academy Trust to
account. The Directors will meet at least three times a yoar, and the Local Advisory Groups will report to
meetings of the Board of Directors once per term.

Each school within the Trust has a constituted Advisory Group known as the Local Advisory Group {LAG). The
.AG is not a committee of the Board but is used to inform and support the work of the board. The Group will be
supported by Headteachers and Directors, who will help to support the ethos of each school and the Christian
distinctiveness of aur Church schaols,
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THE SMALL SCHOOLS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

The Board of Directors and Local Advisory Groups do not exercise a managerial role. The leadership and
management across the Academy Trust is delegated by the Board of Director's to the Chief Execufive Officer
and Senlor Leadership Team of the Trust. The Senior Leadership Téam are responsible at an executive level
for imptementing the policies laid down by the Board of Directors and reporting back to them via the Directors
Board meetings. This includes actions concerning the budget, staffing, and school improvement.

The Chief Executive Officer is the Accounting Officer and is responsible for the autharisation of spending within
agreed budgats, :

g. PAY POLICY FOR KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

The current arrangements for setting the pay and remuneraiion of the key manggement personnei of the
Academy Trust are subject to the 'school teachers pay and conditions document and guidance on school
teachers pay and conditions’. The determination of leadership pay is in line with the schoo! group size and
relevant scale points altributed to the group pay range.

incrementat rises are dependsnt upon the successful completion of the previous years’ performance
management cycle and quality assured by the Board of Directors. Recommendations for pay increases are
made by the Chief Execulive Officer to the Board of Directors.

The salary of the CEO was determined prior to the formation of The Small Schools Multi Academy Trust. The
pay range was delermined in.accordance with School Teachers Pay and Conditions, taking account of the size
of the two fedsrated schools and the additional responsibility for The Howard Primary School.

The Trust's Director of Business Operations salary was determinad and is paid in accordance with the Trust's
Pay Framework and conditions of service as adopted from the Lacal Authority at the point of transfer.

h. CONNECTED ORGANISATIONS, INCLUDING RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS

The members, Directors, Local Advisory Group members, and the Accounting Officer all complete a pecuniary
interest declaration on an annual basis. This declaration sets out any relationship with the Academy Trust thet is
not direclly related to their duties within these roles. Each individual is alse required to declare a potential
‘confiict of interest’ if & arises between such declarations. Once a declaration has been made, the individual
concerned takes no further part in any dacision relating to the maiter declared.

In respect of the current period, the Academy Trust has the following relationships:

. Has made payments to Principal HR Partner Limited, a company controlled by one of the Directors,

* Hes made payments to Educational Consultancy Limited, a company controlled by one of the Members.

. Has identified and teken action to avoid any conflict of interest in respect of the relationship between Mrs
Heather Bowrnan ~ Chair of Directors and Mr John Bowman — Member

. Has employed Mrs Jacqui Bowman as Trust Administrator, a family member of Mrs Healher Bowman,
and Mr John Bowman

Page 5




THE SMALE SCHOOLS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
{A company (imited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES® REPORT {continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 21 AUGUST 2018

The following are considered charilies and are connected to The Small Schools Multi Academy Trust:

Charity Function

The Richard Crosse PTA To organise fundraising and soclal evenis to support the work of
the school.

The St. Mary's PTFA To organise fundraising and social events to suppont the work of
the school.

The Howard Friends Assaociation To organise fundraising and social events to support the work of
the schoof,

The Colton United Trust To hold the buiildings and land in Trust and make financial
donations to the school for capilal reiated expenditure from their

_ investmants.

The Richard Crosse Foundation To hold the buildings and land in Trust and make financlal
donations to the school for capital ralated expenditure from their
investments,

Objectives and Activities

a. OBJECTS AND AlMS

The Small Schools Multi Academy Trust was established in August 2015 following the success of The St.
Mary's and Richard Crosse Federation, and the loose collaborative parinership with The Howard Primary
Scheol, which was a school that required improvement. The Trust's objeclive ig to improve the quality of
education for pupils within small rural primary schools; ensuring that they have access to:

» teachers who are experts in their field

. an array of extra- curricular activities that enrich their learning

. specialist support to overcome learning barriers aliowing them to fulfil thair full potential,

The Small Schools Multi Academy Trust wishes to retain the benefits that small schools offer by being large
enough to cope with the increasing demands of a school-led system, but small enough to care through our
family athos.

b. OBJECTIVES, STRATEGIES AND ACTIVITIES

The Trust's object ("the object”) Is specifically restricted to the following:

To advance for the public benefit education in the United Kingdom, in particular but without prejudice to the
generality of the forgoing by establishing, maintaining, carrying on, managing and developing schools which
shali offer a broad and balanced curriculum and which shall include:

. Church of England Schools designated as sych which shall ba conducted in accordance with the
principles, practices and tenets of the Church of England both generally and in particutar in relation fo
amanging for religious education and daily acts of worship, and having regard to any advice issued by the
Lichfiald Diocasan Board of Education;

. Other schools not designated as Church of England Schocls whether with or without a designated
religious character;

. To recognise and support the individual ethos of all schools whether or not designated Church of England
schoals,
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THE SMALL SCHOOLS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

Vislon

Our vision is threefold:- S

. To deliver the highest quality isarning for pupils in an environment that values the friendliness and
familiarity that small numbers allow;

N To ensure that a rural community has a future, éind can thrive, if quality éducation is at its heart;

) To extend learning beyond the confines of the achool into the ecammunity and beyond.

Values

Our values are threefold:-

. That every child is B chifd of God irrespective of gender, ethnicity, religion, ability or family background
and as such is unique and to be nurtured and be brought to full patenttal;

That the ethos that underpins our attitudes and behaviours is that we will love our neighbours as
ourselves;

That learning and being taught well in a caring community makes us better and stronger people.

Ethos .

The ethos of the Trust is that we operate with honesty and integrily for the benefit of all children attending any of
our schools. We recognise the important role small schools plays in the education system In improving
outcomes for children, which is achieved by creating a caring and nurturing family ethos. As a group-of schools,
this enables us fo be larger enough to cope and small enough to care, ‘ - S o

The strategic goals of the Trust are:

1) To provide high quality education provision for all schools within the Trust that improve the outcomes of all of
our pupils. This will be achieved by providing appropriate and proportionate support and challenge to each
school within the Trust. There will be a focus on:

Establish and monitoring a system of govemanca through an effective Board of Directors and Local Advisory
Groups.

. Providing intervention to support school improvement.

. Developing collaborative curriculum activities o support key skill development, increasing independence
and resllisnce.

Developing monitoring and evaluating strategies and precedures that will drive school improvement.
Devaloping a high performing leadership team.

Employing staff with specific skills and deploylng them across all schools within the Trust.

Allowing Headteachers to focus on the core function of teaching and leaming.

Continuous professional development for all staff,

Supporting the procurement of bast value central sarvices.

Collaboratively sharing and supporting best practice.

2) To provide the same high quality of education provision to pupils oulside of the Trust to help achisve the
governmant's aim of the same standard of education for all children, Thig will be achieved by.

) Developing a syslematic marketing strategy and work with local stakehelders, Headleacher forums and
the DIE to identify potential schools and academies that wish to join the Academy Trust.

. Ta continue to bulld capacity by creating & robust management structure which involves building & central
taam to support the Trust's Board of Directors.

. To continue to develop training based onh the expertise within the Trust that can be delivered 1o other
educafion providers,

. To continue to develop more effective means of collaboration with other education providers to share
best practice and encourage greater innovalion within the education sector.
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THE SMALL SCHOOLS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (contlnued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

] To continue ta devalop links with other schools through ‘The Rugeley Leadership Collaboration’, The Hart
Academies, The Rawlett School, The National Forest Teaching Schoo!, The John Taylor MAT and our
own arrangemants with individual and groups of lacal primary schools,

The Trust is cammitted to employment policies which follow best practice based on egual opportunities for all
employees irrespective of sex, race, colour, disability, maritat status or sexual orientation. The Trust gives full
and fair consideration to applicalions for employment from disabled persens having regard to their particular
aplitudes and abilities.

<. PUBLIC BENEFIT

The Board of Directors confirm that they have referred to the guidance contained in the Charity Commissioner's
general guidance on public benefit when reviewing the Trust's objective and aims, and in planning future
activities for the pariod. The Directors consider that the Trust can clearly demonstrate that its aims are to
advance education for public benefit.

Achlevements and performance
Strateglc report
a. KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The Trust's main objective Is to improve the quallly of education for pupils within small rurat primary schools;
ensuring that they have access to:

teachers who are expents in their field

an array of extra- curricular activities that enrich their Jearning

specialist support to overcome learning barriers allowing them to fulfil their full potential
broad and balanced curriculum

Our most recent Ofsted Inspaction raports for St. Mary’s and The Haward confirm that these ohbjectives have
bsen achiaved.

To ensure that the Trust is financially viable in the long term, and meets all of the requirements of the
Academies, we will measure againgt the following financial key performance indicators:-

Successful intemal audit. This was achieved, with no major weaknesses being ilentified.
Succassful external audit. This was achieved in 2017.

% of staff costs to income. Target = 80%

% of non-staff costs to income. Target = 17%

* & & »

In order to suppor the Trust's main abjective the following Key Performance Indicators were set.

Altendance — uniess all children regularly attend school progress will ke limited, The Trust set an attendance
target for the 2017 - 2018 academic year of 97%:

The Richard Crosse Church of England Primary School 97.17%
The St. Mary’s Church of England Primary $School 95.52%
The Howard Primary School 96.56%
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THE SMALL SCHOOLS MULT] ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

Detailed analysis and reasons for absence are held at schoal level.

» Pupil, Families and Staff Salisfaction — To ensure that the voice of key partners is heéi‘d, the Trust
surveyed pupils, parents and employees for their perspective on the schools within the Trust. The results
from these surveys were as follows: ’ . '

Parant Voica

The figures for all three schools have been collated 1o give the Trust average.

Question Percentage of positivity 2017 Percentage of positivity 2018
My child feels safe at schoot . 99% e 100% e
My child is making good progress 100% e 100%

The school meets my child's needs 100% . - 976%

The schoo! looks after my child 99% . . 100%

My child is well taught 100% 100%

The school helps my child to develop skills 100% 08%

Thers is a good standard of bahaviour 94% . 94%

Lessons are not disrupted by bad behaviour Bi% . B9%

The school deals with bullying 81% 88%

The school helps me to support my child's learning 97% _ . 9%

The school responds well to my concerns 95% 98%

The school keaps me wall-informed 95% 95%

Parents racommaendations of schools 96% 97%

My child is happy at achool 90% 100%

In order to further develop the relationships between parents and schools, there will be a full, comprehensive
review of TSSMAT/schools communication processes, and their efficacy, in their entirety during the academic
year 20182018,

Staff Climate

When surveyed, 100% of the staff said they were praud to be a member of staff in TSSMAT. All staff felt that
lsaders do all they can to improve teaching, and that TSSMAT is well led and managed.

Trust Growth

Anson Church of England Aided Primary Schoo! made a formal application in May 2018, to the Regicnal
School's Commissianer to join TSSMAT,

h. GOING CONCERN

Afior making appropriate enquiries, the Board of Directors has a reasonable expactation that the Academy
Trust has adequate rescurces to continus in aperational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, it
continuas to adopt the going concemn basis in preparing the financial statemenis. Fuither details regarding the
adoption of the going concem basis can be found in the Statement of Accounting Poticles.
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THE SMALL SCHOOLS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
{A company limitad by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT {continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

. REVIEW OF ACTIVITIES

Qur Oblective

To provide an outstanding education In all schools within the Trust that will improve outcomes for all our
children,

W

We continued to develop our leadarship team and reviewed job descriplions and roles and responsibilities.
Heads of School at The St. Mary's Church of England Primary School and The Richard Crosse Church of
England Primary School were promoted to the position of Headteacher to aliow the Executive Headteacher to
concentrate on the roles of Chief Executive Officer and Accounting Officer. Following the resignation of Mrs L
Denby at The Howard Primary School, the Trust recruited Miss R Mills to become the Headteacher. Trust
responsibilities were agsigned to individuals in line with specific skill sets and experience. Experienced high
performing teachers have been recruited to compliment cur existing high quality teams. During the year, there
were fluctuations in staffing due to employses returing from maternily leave, the restructuring of staffing at The
Howard due to a child with additional need requiring specialist support, and a member of siaff gaining a
promoted position at a school within a different geographical area. We were abla to recruit high calibre staff to
vacant posts.

We continue to invest in our staff by providing high qualily continuous professional development. This has besn
achieved by commissioning external consultants and trainers, and by using in-house expertise.

The 8t Mary's Church of England Primary Schaol had a short one day Ofsted inspection on 24th April 2018
whereby, the Inspector confirmed that the school is judged as a good school with outstanding features. The
report praised the work of the School and the Multi Academy Trust, and went on lo say:

] The Executive Headteacher and Directors provide you with support and challenge in equal measure.
They have & wealth of skllls and expertise to call upon, They have a ¢lear understanding of their statutory
funclions and responsibilities, The well-being of pupils and staff is at the centre of their work, They are
committed and enthusiastic about their work. Through regular meetings, the Diractors track the impact of
developments across the school and the progress that the pupils are making. Directors check out what
they have been told by visiting the school to see for themselves.’

The Howard Primary School was given a full inspection on 12th & 13th June 2018 led by Steven Cartiledge.
The school was judged to be a good school in all areas, and this report also praised the wark of the school and
the Trust. The report stated that:

All leaders, including Diractors, ensurs that thers ara high aspirations for every pupil.
The Trust provides highly effective support to the schoal, The three schools within the multi Academy
Trust work closely together ta share good practice. This benefits all pupils.

. Govemnance is effactive. Directors carefully evaluate the schools devslopment and are well informed
about pupils' progress. They hold leaders firmly to account

The Impact
Foundation Stage

At The Richard Crosse C. Of E. Primary Scheol, the results at the end of the Early Years were good with 85%
achieving a good lavel of development.

The resuits at The St. Mary's C. of E. Primary School were below the national average with 87% achieving a
good levet of development. This was due to a small cohort, being only six in number.
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THE SMALL SCHOOLS MULT{ ACADEMY TRUST
{A company Himited by guarantes)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

At The Howard, 86% achieved a good level of development, which was much improved on the previous year.

Year 1 Phonlcs Screening :

Al The Richard Crosse Church of England Primary School, the resulls of the phonics screening were not as
good as the previous year, with 80% of children achieving the expected standard. This was due to an increased
number of children with SEN in the cohort, All children who retook the screening check in Year Two achieved
the expected standard, '

At The St. Mary's Church of England Primary School, 77% achieved the expected standard. This was below the
national average, and was altributed to a small cohort with a high-number of SEN. All children who retook the
screening chack in Year Two achieved the expecied standard. ' _

Al The Howard Primary School, 1% of the children in Year 1 achicved the expected standard, which was much
improved on the previous year. :

Year 2

The results for Year 2 were good at Richard Crosse in reading, writing and maths, being well above the national
average at the expected level in all subjects. The children have a sound foundation on which to starf Key Stage
2. The percentage of children achieving greater depth in all areas was also above the national average. -

The results for Year 2 at The St. Mary's Church of England Primary School were broadly in line with national
averages In all areas.

At The Howard, due to the size of the cohort and the number of children within the cohort on the SEN register,
the results for this group ware below the nationat average.

Wiiling, Grammar, punctuation and spelling — Spelling continues to be a whole Trust focus.

Yoar 6
Results at all three schools were broadly in tine with national averages.

Richard Crosse — The results were pleasing with 84% of the cohort achieving the expected standard or higher
in reading, writing and maths combined, compared with 64% nationally. Progress in reading and maths was
broadly average however, progress in writing was well above average. The average scaled score in reading was
108.3, which was well above the nalional average. The average scaled score for maths was 104.6, which was
broadly in line with the national average. Mathematics is a school fecus for the academic year 2018/2019.

The progress score for disadvantaged pupils was well above the national average for non-disadvantaged pupils
in reading and writing, and was above the national average for non-disadvantaged children in maths.

St. Mary's — A similarly pleasing picture this year at St. Mary's, 83% of the pupils achieved the expected
standard in reading, writing and maths combined, The average scaled score in reading was 109.8, which was
well abova the national average. The average scalad score for maths was 104.3, which was broadly In line with
the national average, Mathematics is a schoo! focus for the academic ysar 2018/2019.

The Howard — The results at The Howard were much improved on the previous year, The progress in reading,
writing and maths was broadly average. 60% of the cohort achieved the expected standard or higher in reading,
writing and maths combined, which was slightly below the national average of 64%, howaver thera were three
children within this cohort on the SEN register and two of which had an Education Heslth Care Plan. The
average scaled score In reading was 108.3, which was well above the national average. The average scaled
score for maths was 104.3, which was broadly In ling with the national average. Mathematics is a school focus
for the academic year 2018/2019.
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THE SMALL SCHOOLS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES® REPORT {continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

Lessons loarnt
We heliave that the following has helped 1o improve our end of Key Stage 2 resulls:

. The children's” educational journey needs to be solid throughout Key Stage 2 and underachievemeant
tackled by school ieaders at alf levals early on,

* Reading is a strength across the Trust, The results in mathamatics need to mirror this.

) All children should be exposed to high quality teaching, and children on the SEN register shouldn't be
held back by less exposure to the full requirements of the curriculum.
Teaching Assistants should not only work with one ahility group.
Writing and spelling were a Trust focus, and this has had a positive impact on the children’s’ ability to
write,

. We continue to utilise the strengths of individual teachers across the Trust.

Financial review
a. RESERVES POLICY

Any reserves hald are in accordance with the requirements laid down in the Master Funding Agreement, and by
the Education Funding Agency.

The policy of the Academy Trust is to carry forward a prudent level of resources designed to mest the long-term
cyclical needs of renewal and any other unforeseen contingencies. This is nat a fixed amount or percentage.

For fixed asset funds, the Business Operations Director and Accounting Officer will propose a capltal reserve
schedule to the Directors identifying the need fo replace assets and the related sums raquired each year. This is
not a fixed amount or percentags. They will agree the value of capital reserves to be crealed in a year as part of
the budgei approval process, Spend of tha capital reserve fund will only ocour as agreed budgeted spend, which
is approved by the Directors as part of the budget process.

As at 31 Auguat 2018 the Academy Trust has total reserves of £1,428,300 which consisted of restricted fixed
asset funds of £1,132,125, pension deficit of £468,000, restricted furnds of £591,530 and free reserves of
£173,645,

Restricted funds of £591,630 consist entirely of unspent Condition Improvement Fund (CIF) capital grant
received in raspect of property occupied under supplemental agreement.

Free reserves consists of unrestricted funds of £473,845.

The Trust feels that the value of reserves held as at 31 August 2018, are sufficient in value to enable the Trust
lo deliver the priorities identified during the budget selting process for the 2018 - 2018 acadsmy ysar and
beyond.

b. INVESTMENTS POLICY AND POWERS

The Board of Directors agreed that no investments would be made due to current low interest rates and the
volatile financig) markets. The subject of investments would be discussed annually, Directors acknowledged that
they may be required to adopt a cautious, prudent and welk-diversified investment stance, taking into account
future cash flow projections to balance potential returns with appropriate levels of risk, whilst attracting as high
an interest raturns as possible.
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THE SMALL SCHOOLS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
{A company limited by guarantes)

TRUSTEES' REPORT {continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

¢. PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Trust assasses the risks arising from its operations, and examines the likelihood and materiality of each
risk. The Trust operates a risk register, which describes the contro! rmachanisms-in place to manage or miligate
each risk, assesses the level of risk, and identifies other actions that may heip reduce the risk further. The rigk
register is reviewed annually by the Board of Directors.

A review of the principal risks highlights the financial rigk involved in the refliance on Governmant funding, and
the limited influence of the Trust on the level and future of this funding.

The deficit on the Local Government Pension Scheme of £468,000 presents a concern. However, Parflament
has agread, at the request of the Secrelary of State for Education, to guarantee that in the event of academy
closure, outstanding local government pension scheme liability would be met by the Department for Education.
This guarantee came into force on 18 Juiy 2013. ' S '

The Trust addresses the risk of misappropriation of funds through theft, fraud or other means by:-’

¢ utilising the services of external accountants and auditors, -

. ensuring that segregation of dulies are utilised wherever possible, = _ i o

. using industry-standard financial packages such as P § Financlals (Purchasing and Finance) and Parent
Pay (Cashless payments system),

. carrying out internal checks (i.e. Business Operations Director checks / Accounting Officer checks /
Finance Director checks).

d. FINANCIAL REVIEW

Income for the period was £2,269,183 compered to £1,399,862 in 2017. £1,268,975 {2017 - £1,220,358) of
income was provided by the Depariment of Education (DME) via the Education and Skills Funding Agency
(ESFA) by means of standard granis to cover operational and capital costs. This was supplemented by
donations and Capital Grants and other trading activities including third party lettings and funds generaled by
extended school activities. In 2018 capital grants were £753,495 compared to £14,931 In 2017, The significant
Jave! of capital grants recognised in 2018 is due to two successful bids for condition improvemant fund grants
during the year.

Expenditure supports the Academy Trust key objectives ta deliver quality education to our puplis and
communily. Total expenditure for tha period was £1 676,553 compared to £1,811,736 in 2017, with the largest
element of this expenditura being attibuted to staff costs, totafling £1,286,351 (2017 - £1,264,801) for the
period. The depreclation and amortisation charge on assets of £38,508 has been [ncluded. Net income belore
actuarial gains on defined benefit pension schemes for the year was £691 ,640.

The Trust element of the Penslon fund that forms part of the Local Government Pension Scheme was valued at
31 August 2018, showing a net liabllity of £468,000 {2017 - £487,000).

As at 31 August 2018, the net book value of tangible fixed assets was £1,066,951 {2017 - £1,038,929) and the
mavement In tangible fixed assets are shown in Note 14 of the financial statements. The assels were used
exclusively in providing education and the associated support services to the pupils across the Trust.

The Trust complies with the principles of financial control as outiined in the Academies Financlal Handbook and
the Accounts Direction. The financial procedures, Scheme of Delegation and Value for Money statement
together with systems of financial control ensure that the Trust conforme to the requirements of propriety,
regularity and sound financial management.
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THE SMALL SCHOOLS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

The Board of Directors are accountable for the aliocation of resources to meet the objectives set out in the
School Improvement Plan. The Accounting Officer togsther with the Board of Direclors is responsible for
reviewing the Financial Procedures on an annual basis, The intention is for individual academy budgets to be
monitored on a monthly basis with reports and commentary on income and expenditure against budget provided
to the Board of Directors.

Plans for futurs pariods

a, FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

Our Trust's Strategic Plan is:

To ensura that all childran make at least ‘Good' progress 8o that &l academies continue to improve and
are judged at least ‘Good’ by Ofsted

To ansure that the quality of teachmg over time is improving and is at least "Good' with no ‘inadequate’
teaching

To ensure that leadership across the Trust at all levels is consistently ‘Good’ or better

To ensure that the curriculum is hroad and balanced, real and purposeful, and inspires childran to leam
To ensure that Governance provides the necessary rigour, challenge, and support 1o allow our schools 1o
thiive

To ansure that the Trust is financially visble in the long term, and meets all of the requirements of the
cademiss Financial Handbook

To enable us to fulfil the objectives oullined within our Strategic Plan we aim to:

* * & & & 8

Continue to develap our employees and recruit high performing teachers

Continually monitor our curriculum, and develop the opporiunities for cutdoor learning

To ensure that a complets set of Policies and Precedures are in place and embedded across the Trust
To review the skill set of our exiating Board of Directors, and where necessary identify training needs

To increace the number of schools within the Trust

To ingrease the membership of good and outstanding schools, so that the capacity to support each other
increases

To ensure the Trust continues to develop fulure leaders from within who are able to lead schools within
the Trust

To ensure the Trust continues to develop and grow its own teachars from within, and who are able o
transfer from school 16 school

To generate sufficient income from traded services to support the work of the Trust

To continue to develop cur extended school and wrap around care provision across tha Trust

To expand and develop the Trust so that it remaing sustainable and high-performing, consistent with its
values and cors purpose
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THE SMALL SCHOOLS MULT! ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantae)

TRUSTEES' REPORT {continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITORS

In 8o far as tha Directors are aware:
) there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditor is unaware;

. the Directors have taken all steps that they ought to have taken fo make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information, and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information,

The Trustees' report, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the Board of Directors, as the '
company directors, on 30 \\.\ 3and signed on its behalf by:

WW-

H L Bowman
Chalr of Trustees
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THE SMALL SCHOOLS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITY

As Directors, we acknowledge we hava ovarall responsibility for ensuring that The Small Schools Multi Academy
Trust has an sffective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However such a system is
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide
oniy reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board of Directors has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Chief Executive Officer, as Accounting
Officer, for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propristy and good financial
management and in accordance with the requiraments and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding
agreement between The Small Schools Multi Academy Trus? and the Secretary of State for Education, They are
also responsible for reporting to the Board of Directors any material weaknesses or breakdowns in Internal
control.

GOVERNANCE
The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' report, and in the

Statement of Trustees' responsibilities, The Board of Directors has formally met 14 times during the year.
Attendance during the year at meetings of the Board of Directors was as follows:

Trustee Meatings aftended Out of a possible
H L Bowman, {Chair) 12 14
S B Cotkayne 13 14
P R Halifax, {Vice Chair) 10 14
M Havelock-Crozier 7 14
C R Hopkins 0 14
C Humphries 5 14
J Smith 10 14
G J Wood 10 14
P J Lovern, (Accounting Officer) 14 14

Colin Hopkins as CECET representative is required to be listed as a- Director but is not required to attend
Directors meelings.

The Trust carried oul une Govemance review during the financial year 2017 - 2018. The review demonstrated
that the structure was fit for purpose based on the skill set of the current board.

The next Governance review Is scheduled for the Summer Term 2019.
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THE SMALL SCHOOLS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limlted by guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued)

REVIEW OF VALUE FOR MONEY

As Accounting Officer, the Chief Executive Officer has responsibility for ensuring that the Academy Trust
delivers good value in the use of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for money
refers to the educational and wider societal cutcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources recsived.

The Accounting Officer considers how the Academy Trust's use of its resources has provided good value for
maney during each academic year, and teports to the Board of Directors where value for monsy can be
improved, including the use of benchmarking data where appropriate. The Accaunting Officer for the Academy
Trust has delivered improved value for money during the year by:

combining the cost of purchases across all schools
sharing of staff across all schools )
sharing of resources across all schools

shared training sessions

supplier reviews

L L * -

THE PURPOSE OF THE SYSTEM OF INTERNAL CONTROL

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonabla level rather than to eliminate all risk of
tailure to achieve policies, aims angd objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and riot ‘absolute
assurance of effectiveness, The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed 1o identify
and priorilise the risks to the achievement of Academy Trust policies, aims and objeclives, to evaluate the
likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them sfficiently,
effectively and economically. The system of internal control has been in place in The Small Schools Multi
Academy Trust for the year 1 September 2017 to 31 August 2018 and up to the date of approval of the annual
report and financiai statements,

CAPACITY TO HANDLE RISK

The Board of Directors has reviewed the key risks to which the Academy Trust is exposed together with the
operating, financial and compliance controls that have been Implemented to mitigate those risks. The Board of
Diractors ig of the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the
Academy Trust's significant risks, that has been in place for the yesr 1 September 2017 to 31 August 2018 and
up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial siatements. This process is regularly reviewed by
the Board of Diractors.

THE RISK AND CONTROL FRAMEWORK

The Academy Trust's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management
information and administrative procedures Including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and
accountability. In particwlar, it inciudes:

. comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports
which are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Directors;

. regular reviews by the finance and genersl purpose commiitee of reports which indicate financial

performance against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure

programimes,

selting targets to measure financial and other performance;

clearly defined purchasing {(asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines.

delegation of authority and segregation of duties;

idontification and management of rigks.

* & B 8
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THE SMALL SCHOOLS MULT| ACADEMY TRUST
{A company Umlted by guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (confinued)

The Board of Directors has considered the nead for a specific internal audit function and has declded to appaint
Academy Advisory as internal auditor.

The interal auditor's role includes giving advice on financial matters and performing a range of checks on the
- Academy Trust's financial systems. In particular the chacks carriad out in the current peried included:
. testing of overall accounts and financial health
tesling of purchasing and procurement
testing of payrofl and HR
testing of revenue and debtars
testing of cash and banking
testing of journals and other areas

LI T S

On an annual  basis, the internal auditor reported to the Board of Directors on the operation of the systems of
contral and on the discharge of the Beard of Directors' financial responsibilities.

The internal auditor has delivered their schedule of work as planned. There ware no material control issues
arising as & result of the work undertaken,

REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS

As Accounting Officer, 1he Chief Exacutive Officer has rasponsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the

system of internal control, During the year in question the review has been informed by:

. the work of the internal auditor;

. the work of tha external auditors;

. the work of the executive managers within the Academy Trust who have responsibility for the
development and maintenance of the internal control framewaork.

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal

control by the Business Operalions Director and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous

improvement of the system is in place,

Approved by crder of the members of the Board of Directors on 3o f u tg . and signed on their behalf, by:

Yesea, G

H L Bowman PJLovern
Chair of Trusteas Accounting Offlcer
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THE SMALL SCHOOLS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

STATEMENT ON REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE

As Accounting Officer of The Small Schools Multi Academy Trust | have considered my rasponsibility to notify
the academy trust board of trustees and the Education & Skills Funding Agsncy (ESFA) of material irregularity,
impropriely and non-compliance with terms and canditions of ali funding received by the academy trust, under
the funding agreement in place between the academy trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of
my consideration 1 have had due regard to the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook 2017,

I confirm that | and the academy trust board of trustees are able to idenlify any material irregular or improper
use of funds by the academy trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under
the academy trust's funding agreement and the Academies Financiat Handbook 2017

I confirm that the following instances of malerial irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance discovered
to date have been notified to the board of krustess and ESFA. If any instances are identified after the date of this
statement, these will be notified to the board of trustees ang ESFA:

Publishing Information about governance structures

During the year the Academy Trusl had not published on its website some of the detalls required by the
Academies Financial Handbook 2017,

Zanas

P J Lovern
Accounting Offlcer

X lulig
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THE SMALL SCHOOLS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
{A company lImited by guarantee)

STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

The Directors {who act as Trustees for The Small Schools Multi Academy Trust) are responsible for preparing
the Trustees' raport and tha financial statements in accordance with the Annual Accounts Direction issued by
the Education & Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally
Accepled Accounting Practice) and applicablé law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company
law the Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfiad that they give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of
resources, including its income and expenditure, for that period, In preparing these financial statements, the
Directors are required to;

. select sultable accounting policies and then apply them consistentlﬁ

. observe the methods and principles of the Charities SORP 2015 and the Academiss Accounts Direction
2017 to 2018;

. make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

s+  slate whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

. prapara the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it Is Inappropriate to presume that
the charitable company will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the charitable company’s transactions and disclose with reasohable accuracy at any time the financial position
of the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies
financlal and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propristy and of good financial
management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from ESFA/DIE have been applied for
the purposes intended.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrily of the corporate and financial information
included on the charitable company’s wabsite, Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparstion and
dissemination of financlal statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Directors on 30.U ¥ and signed on its behalf by:

Weasos Hemon -

H L Bowman
Chair of Trustees
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THE SMALL SCHOOLS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF THE
SMALL SCHOOLS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST : :

OPINION

We have audited the financial statements of The Small Schools Multi Academy Trust (the ‘academy trust) (the
‘academy) for the year ended 31 August 2018 which comprise the Statement of financial activities
incarporating income and expenditure accounts, the Balance sheet, the Statement of cash flows and the related
notes, including & summary of significant accounting policies, The financial reporting framework that has been
applied in thelr preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Genarally
Accepled Accounling Practice), including Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland', the Charities SORP 2015 anid the Academias Accotlints Direction
2017 to 2018 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency. ) i

In our opinion the financlal statements: o

. give a true and fair view of the state of the academy trust's affairs as at 31 August 2018 and of its
incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure for the year than
ended;

. have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice: and '

. have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2008, the Charities
SORP 2015 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2017 to 2018 issued by the Education and - Skills
Funding Agency.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducied our audit in accordance with Internationat Standards on Auditing (UK) (1SAs (UK)) and applicabla
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audil
of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the academy trust in accordance with
the elhical requirements that are relavant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Kingdom,
incduding the Financial Reporting Councils Ethical Standard, and we have fulfiled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence wa have cbtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

CONCLUSIONS RELATING TO GOING CONCERN

We have nothing to report in respect of the following malters in refation to which the 1SAs (UK) require us to

report to you where;

. tha Trustees' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements
is not appropriate; or

. the Trustees have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may

cast significant doubt about the ability to continue to adopt the going concem basis of accounling for a
period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.
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THE SMALL SCHOOLS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
{A company limited by guarantes)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF THE
SMALL SCHOOLS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

OTHER INFORMATION

The Trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
" included in the Annual report, other than the financial statements ‘and our Auditors' report thereon. Our oplnion
on the financlal statements does not cover the ather information and, except to the exdent otherwise explicitly
stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

in connection with our audit of the financial stalements, our responsibiiity is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other infarmation is materially inconsistent with the financial stetements or our
knowledge ohtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are reguired to determine whether there.is a materal
misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other informatian. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
refjuired to report that fact.

We have nothing to repori in this regard.
OPINION ON OTHER MATTERS PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPANIES ACT 2008

In our opinion, based an the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

. the information given in the Trustees' report including the Strategic report for the financial year for which
the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

. the Trustees' repart and the Strategic report have been prepared in accordance with applicable lagal
requiremaents,

MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT BY EXCEPTION

in the light of our knowledge and understanding of the academy trust and lts environment obtained in the course
of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees' report including the Strategic report.

We have nothing to report in raspect of the following malters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

. adequate accounting records have not been kept, or relurns adequate for our audit have nol been
received from branches not visited by us; or

. the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and retumnsg; or
. certain disclosures of Trusises' remuneration specified by law are not made; or
. we have not recelved all the information and explanations we require for our audit,

RESPONSIBILITIES OF TRUSTEES

As explained more fully in the Statement of Trustees' responsibilities, the Trustess {who are also the directors of
the academy trust far the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being salisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such intemal control as the
Trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statemenits that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or ervor.
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THE SMALL SCHOOLS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee}

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF THE
SMALL SCHOOLS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST .

In p(eparing the financlal statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the academy trust's ability to
continue as & golng concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters réfated to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liguidate the-academy or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternalive but to do so. '

AUDITORS' RESPONS!BILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and-to issue an Auditors' report that Includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but-is not a guarantes that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered matesial if, individually or-in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected ta influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements Is focated on the Financial
Reporting Councif's website at: www.fre.org.tik/auditorsresponsibilities. This descriplion forms part of our
Auditors' repot.

USE OF OUR REPORT

This report is made solely to the academy trust's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16
of the Companies Act 2006, Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state fo the academy trust's
members those matters we are required to state to them in an Auditors' report and for no other purpose. To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the academy
trust and the academy trust's members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the apinions we have
formed.

M',.Ll»(,._ Cic/lf\-k J'\A_.L“l“ L"A..‘h_.—-p

Ashiey M Conway (Senior statutory auditor)

for and on behalf of

Mittan Clarke Audlt Limited, Statutory Audltor
Chartered Accountanis

The Glades

Festival Way

Festival Park

Stoke on Trent

Staffordshire

ST1 65Q

Date: | § (n‘/btg .
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THE SMALL SCHOOLS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee)

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANTS' ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO THE SMALL
SCHOOLS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST AND THE EDUCATION & SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY

in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 29 August 2018 and further to the requiramants of
the Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Dlreptinn 2.017 10 2018,
we have carried out ah engagement to-obtain limited assurance about whether the expsnditure disbursed and
income received by The Small Schools’ Muiti Academy Trust during the yesr 1 September 2017 to 31 August
2018 have been applied fo the purposes identified by Parliament and the financisi transactions conform to the

authorities which govern them,

This report is made solely to The Small Schoals Multi Academy Trust and the ESFA in accordance with the
terms of our engagement fetter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to The Small Schools
Multi Academy Trust and the ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose,
To the fullest extent panmitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than The
Small Schools Multi Academy Trust and the ESFA, for our work, for this repor, or for the conclusion we have

farmed.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE SMALL SCHOOLS MULTE ACADEMY TRUST'S ACCOUNTING
OFFICER AND THE REPORTING ACCOUNTANT

The Accounting Officer is responsible, under the requirements of The Small Schools Mulli Academy Trusl's
funding agresment with the Secrelary of State for Education dated 29 July 2015, and the Academies Financial
Handbook extant from 1 September 2017, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and Income received is
applied for the purposes intended by Parfiament and the financlal transactions canform o the authorities which
govern them,

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our prafession’s ethical
guidance and are to obtain fimited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement fetter and the
requirements of the Acadamias Accounts Direction 2017 to 2018. Was report to you whether anylhing has come
fo our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in aii malerial respects, expenditure disbursed and
income received during the year 1 September 2017 to 31 August 2018 have not been applied to purposes
intended by Parfiament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govarn them.

APPROACH

We conducied our engagement in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2017 to 2018 issued by
the ESFA. We performed a limited assurance angagement as defined in our engagement letter,

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such pracedures as to obtain information and
axpl?nr?tions in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on
regularity.

A limited assurance engagement Is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to cbtain assuranca that we would becorme aware of all significant mattars that
might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion,

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and prapriely of
the academy's income and expenditure.
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THE SMALL SCHOQLS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee)

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANTS® ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO THE SMALL
SCHOOLS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST AND THE EDUCATION 8 SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY (continued)

The work undertaken to draw our conciuslons includes:

. consideration of the eviderice supporting the accounting officers statement on regularity, propriety and
compliance;

analytical pracedures on the general aclivities of the academy trust, o

a review of minutes of committees and board meatings which may be relevant to regularity;
conskietation of discussions with key personnel inciuding the accounting officer and goverriing body;
tests of control have been carried out on contro] activities which are relevant to regularity; and

on a sample basis, substaniiva testing of ingividual trangactions. S

CONCLUSION

In the course of our work, except for the matters listed below, nothing has come to our attention which suggests
that in all material respects the expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2017
{0 31 August 2018 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do
not conform to the autherities which govemn them.

Publishing information about governance structures

During the year the Academy Trust has not published on its website some of the detalls required by the
Academiss Financlal Handbook 2017.

Mithw Clodar Artit Lok

Mitten Clarke Audit Limited
Chartered Accountants

The Glades

Fostivat Way

Festival Park

Stoke on Trent

Staffordshire

5T158Q

Date: |3{‘;{wgg ]
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THE SMALL SCHOOLS MULT]I ACADEMY TRUST
{A company limited by guarantes)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

INCOME FROM:

Donations and capltal grants

Charitable activities
Other trading activities
Investments

TOTAL INCOME

EXPENDITURE ON:

Raising funds
Charitabls activities
Qther expanditure

TOTAL EXPENDITURE

NET REFORE TRANSFERS

Transfers between Funds

NET INCOME /

(EXPENDITURE] BEFORE

19

OTHER RECOGNISED GAINS

AND LOSSES

Acluarial gains on defined

benefit pension schemes

24

NET MOVEMENT IN FUNDS
RECONCILIATION OF FUNDS:

Total funds brought forward

Prior year adjustment

TOTAL FUNDS CARRIED

FORWARD

Restricted

Unrestricted  Restricted fixed asset Total Tolal
funds funda funds funds funds
2018 2018 2018 2018 2017

£ £ £ £ £

7,688 629,084 124,411 781,184 20,837
44,683 1,387,534 - 1,442,217 1,305,986
95,536 - - 956,536 72,934
256 - - 266 205
148,164 1,996,618 124411 2,260,193 1,399,962
44,852 - - 44,852 1,382
- 1,665,639 38,508 1,604,147 1,610,353

- wsse . Tares :
44,852 1,693,193 38,508 1,678,663 1,611,735
103,312 403,425 86,903 592,640 {211,773)
(103,531} 118,105 (14,574) - -

(219) 521,530 71,329 592,640 (211,773)

- 99,000 - 99,000 73,000

(219) 620,630 71,329 691,640 {138,773)
173,864 {497,000; 1,060,796 737,660 4,039,617
- - - - {3,163,184)
173,645 123,630 1,132,125 1,428,300 737,660
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THE SMALL SCHOOLS MULT) ACADEMY TRUST

{A company limited by guarantea)
REGISTERED NUMBER: 09613632

BALANGCE SHEET
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2018

2018 2017
Note £ £ £ £ -
FIXED ASSETS
Intangible assets 13 4,792 7,292
Tangible assels 14 . 1,066,951 - - 1,038,829
1,071,743 1,048,221
CURRENT ASSETS
Stocks 15 1,460 - 1,450
Deabtors : 16 241,124 ... 82957
Cagsh at bank and in hand 754,631 - 229,177
997,205 313,564
CREDITORS: amounts falling due within _ ' '
one year 17 (171,648) (125,145)
NET CURRENT ASSETS 825,857 188,439
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,887,300 1,234,650
Defined benefil pansion scheme liability 24 {468,000) {497,000)
NET ASSETS INCLUDING PENSION
SCHEME LIABILITIES 1,429,300 737,660
E—————| —
FUNDS OF THE ACADEMY
Restricted income funds. _

Restricted income funds 19 §91,530 -

Restricted fixed asset funds 18 1,132,126 1,060,796

Restricted income funds excluding pension
liability 4,723,655 1,060,796

Pension reserve {468,004) {497,000)

Total restricted income funds 1,266,656 563,796
Unrestricted income funds 19 173,645 173,864
TOTAL FUNDS 1,429,300 737,660

] ey

The financial stataments on pages 26 to 54 were approved by the Trustees, and authorised for issue,on 30 1].18
and are signed on their behalf, by:

WM'

H L Bowiman
Chalr of Trustees
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THE SMALL SCHOOLS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

2018 2017
Note £ £
Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash used in operating activities 21 {19,328) } (134,974)
Cash flows from investing activitles;
Interest received 256 205
Purchase of tangible fixed assets {9,030) (357)
Capital grants from DIE Group £563,6564 .14,931
Net cash provided by Investing activities 544,780 14,779
Change in cash and cash equivalents in the year 525,454 {120,195)
Cash and cash equivalents brought forward 229177 349,372
Cash and cash equivalents carried forward 22 754,631 229177
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THE SMALL SCHOOLS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fOR THE YEAR ENDED.31 AUGUST 2018.

1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.1

1.2

1.3

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently,
except where noted), Judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainly, is set out below. :

Basis of preparation of financial statemonts

The financial staiements of the academy trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have
bean prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financlal Reporting
Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of lreland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporing by
Cherities; Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charilies preparing their accounts in
acoardance with the Financial Reporting Standard appliceble in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS
102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2017 {0 2018 issued by ESFA,
the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2008. e

The Small Schools Muli Academy Trust constitules & public benefit éntity as defined by FRS 102.
Company status

The academy is & company limited by guarantee. The members of the company are the Trustees
named on page 1. In the event of the academy being wourid up; the liability in respect of the
guarantee is limited to £10 per member of the gcademy.

Going concemn

The Trustees assass whether the use of going concem is appropriate, i.e. whether there are any
malerial uncentainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on 1he ability of
the academy to continue as a going concem. The Trustees make this assessment in respect of a
pariod of at least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and
have concluded that the academy frust has adequate resources to continue In operational existence
for the foreseeable future and there are no material uncertainties about the academy trust's ability to
continue as a going concern, thus they continve to adapt the going concern basis of accounting in
preparing the financial statements.
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THE SMALL SCHCOLS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
{A company limited by guarantaa)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

1

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1.4 Income

All income is recognised once the academy has entitlement to the income, it is probable that the
income will be received and the amount of income receivable can be measured refiably.

Grants are Inclided in the Statement of financial activities incorporating income and expenditure
account on a'receivable basis, The balance of income received for specific purposes bul not
expended during the period i shown in the relevant funds on the Balance sheet, Where income is
received in advance of entitiement of receipt, its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as
deferred income, Where entitiement occurs before Income is received, the income s accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognieed in full in the Statement of financlal activities incorporating
income and expenditure account in the ysar for which it is receivable and any abatement in respect
of the perled is deducted from income and recognised as a llabllity.

Capital grants ere recognised when thers is entitlement and are not deferrad aver the life of the
asset on which they are expended. Capilal grant income in connection with expenditure on property
held under supplemental agreements is included in restricted general funds. Capital grant income in
connection with expenditure on fixed assets is included in the restricted fixed asset fund. Unspent
amounts of capilal grant are reflected in the balance sheet in restricted general funds or restricted
fixed asset funds, as appropriate. .

Donations are recognised on a receivable basis where recelpt is probable and the amount can be.
reliably measurad,

Other income, including the hire of facilitles, is recognised in the period In which it is receivable and
to the extent the goods have heen provided or on completion of the service, '
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THE SMALL SCHOOLS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee}

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

1.6

1.6

Expenditura

Expenditure is recognised once there s a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic
benefit to a third party, it is probable that a Wansfer of economic benefits will be required in
settlement and the amount of the obligation can be measured raliably.

Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each aclivily are made up of the total of direct costs
and shared costs, including support costs invelved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs
attributable to a single activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared cosls which contribute to
more than one activity and support costs which are not attributeble to a single activity are
apportioned between those aclivities on a basis consistent with the use of resources. Central staff
costs are allocated on the basis of lime spent,-and depreciation charges allocated on the portion of
the asset's use,

Expenditure on raising funds includes all expenditure incurred by the academiy 1o raise funds for ils
charitable purposes and includes costs of ali fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading.

Expenditure on charitable activities are costs incurred on the academy's educational operations,
including support costs and those costs relating to the govemance of the academy appointed to
charitable aclivities.

Other expenditure includes donations to The Richard Crosse Schoo! Foundation Trustees by way of
improvements to property held under supplemental agreemsits.

Ali expenditure is inclusive of frecoverable VAT.

Intanglble fixed assets and amortlsation

Intangible assets costing £2,000 or more are capitalised and recognised when future economic
benefits ara probable and the cost or value of the asset can be measured reliably. Intangible assets

are initially recognised at cost and are subsequently measured at cost net of amortisation and any
provision for Impairment.

Amortisation is provided on intangible fixed assels at rates calculated to write off the cost of each
assel, less their estimated residual value, over their expected useful lives on the following bases:

Purchased computer software -  5years
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THE SMALL SCHOOLS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
{A company limited by guarantea)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2048

1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuaed)

1.7 Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

1.8

1.9

All assels costing more than £2,000 are capitalised and are carried at cost, net of depreciation and
any pravision for impairment, Batches of items below £2,000 are capitalised where they form part of
one project and together cost more than £2,000 collectively.

Where langible fixed assels have hsen acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the
government or from the private seclor, they are included in the Balance sheat at cost and
depreciated over their expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions aftached
to tha funding requiring the continued use of the asset, the refated grants are credited to a restricted
fixed asset fund in the Statement of financial activities incorporating income and expenditure
account and caried forward in the Balance sheet, Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged
directly o the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of financial activities incorporating income
and expenditure account. Whare tangibla fixed assels have been acquired with unrestricted funds,
depreciation on such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund, :

Dapraciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets at rates calculated to write off the cost of these
assets, less their estimated residual valus, over their expacted useful lives on the following bages:

Leasehold land - 125 years
Leasshold buildings - 50 vears
Leasehold improvements - 10 years
Furniliure and fixtures - SByears

Piant and equipment = Not depreciated

A raview for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicale
that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable, Shortfalls between the carrying
value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment
losses are recognised in the Statement of financial aclivities incorporating income and expenditure
account,

In additior: to the tong leasehold land and buildings the Academy Trust also cccupies property hald
under church supplemental agreements which permit ocoupancy of the premises with a notice
period of two years. The Academy Trust is not able to exercise control over this property and
therefore no fixed asset has been recognised in these financial statements.

Operating leases

Rentals under operating leases are charged to the Statement of financial activities incorporating
income and expenditure account on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Stocks
Slocks are valued at the lower of cast and net realisable value after making due ellowance for

obsolste and slow-moving stocks. Cost includes afl direct costs and an appropriste proportion of
fixed and variable overheads.

1.10 Debtors

Trade and other debtors are recognised at the settlemant amount after any trade discount offered.
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THE SMALL SCHOOLS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantes)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

1.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1.11 Cash at Bank and in hand

Cash at bank and in hand includes cash and short temn highly liquid investments with a short
maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition or opening of the deposit or similar
account.

1.12 Liabllitles and provislons

Liabilities and provisions are recognised when thera is an obligation at the Balance sheet date as a
result of & past event, it is probable 1hat a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settisment,
and the amount of the settlement can be estimated reliably. Liablllties are recognised at the amount
that the academy anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced
payments for the goods or services it must provide. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of
the amounts required to seltle the obligation, Where the effect-of the time value of maney is
material, the provision is based on the present value of those amounts, discounted at the pre-tax
discount rate that reflects the risks apecific to the liabiity. The. unwinding of the discount is
recognised within Interest payable and similar charges.

1.13 Financlal instruments

The academy only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financiel essets and
financial liabiities of the academy and their measurement basis are as follows:

Financial assets - rade debtors are basic financial instrumants. Debt instruments measured at
amortised cost are detalled in note 19, Prepayments are not financial instruments. Cash at bank is
classified as a basic financial nstrument and is measured at face value,

Financial lebilities - trade creditors and other creditors are financial instruments. Debt instruments
measured at amortised cost are detailed in note 19. Taxalion and social security are not included in
the financial instruments disclosure definition, Deferred incame is not deemed fo be a financial
lizhility, as the cash seltlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver services
rather than cash or another financial instruments.

1.14 Taxation

The academy is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Scheduie & of the Finance Act
2010 and therefore it meats the definition of a charitable company for UK corpotation tax purposes.
Accordingly, the academy is patentially exempt from taxation in respect of incomes or capital gains
received within categories covered by Chapter 3 Part 11 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section
266 of the Taxation of Chargeable Galns Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are
applied exclusively to charitable pumposes.
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THE SMALL SCHOOLS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
{A company limited by guarantes)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continuad)

1.16 Penslons

Retiremanl bansfits to employees of the academy trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension
Scheme (“TPS") and the Local Governments Pension Scheme ("t GPS"). These are defined benefit
schemes,

The TPS Is an unfunded scheme and contributions are caloulated so as to spread the cost of
pensions over employees’ working lives with the academy in such a way that the pansion cost is a
substantially leval percentage of current and future pensionable payrol. The contributions are
determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective
unit credit method. As stated iIn note 24, the TPS is a mulliemployer scheme and there Is
insufficient information avafable to use defined benefit accounting. The TPS is therefore treated as
a defined coniribution scheme for accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the
period to which they relate,

The LGPS is a funded scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the academy trust
in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assels are measured at fair value and
lfabilitios are measured on an acluarial bagis using the projected unit credit method and discounted
at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return an a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term
and currency o the [iabilities. The actuarial valuations are oblained at least triennially and are
updated at each Balance sheet dale. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the current
service costs and the costs of acheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments,
They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit
liabilityfasset is also recognised in the Statement of financial aclivities incorporating income and
expenditure account and comprises the interest coat on the defined benefit obligation and interest
income on the scheme assets, caiculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the
beginning of the period by the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between
the interest income on the scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised
in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and Josses are racognised immediately in other recegnised gains and losses.

1.16 Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of
the charitable objects of the academy at the discretion of the Trustees,

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are o be applied to specific capital purposes
imposed by funders where the assst acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restriclions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Department for Education Group.
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THE SMALL SCHOOLS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1.17 Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgment

Esimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are helieved to be reasonable under the
circumstances.,

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions:

The academy trust makes estimates and assumptions conceming the future, The resulting
accounting estimates and assumptions will, by definition, geldor: equal the reldted aciual results.
The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

The presant value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The
assumptions used in determining the net cost (income) for penstons include the discount rate, Any
changas in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 24, will impact the carrying amount of the

pension Hahility. Furthermore a roll forward approach. which -projects results from-the latest full - ..

actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2018 has been used by the -actuary in valuing the
pensions liability at 31 August 2018. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll
forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrylng amount of the pension
liability.

Critical areas of judgment:

The classification of expenditure between restricted and unrestricted is deemed as a crtical area of
judgement as certain expenditure can be applied to both funds. Where this is tha case and the
amounts in question are considered materlal the expenditure is apportioned to both funding streams
on an appropriate basis.

The Trusteas have considered the classification of depreciation between direct and support costs.
The depreciation charge has been allocated based on the proportion of staff costs that are directly
atiributable o direct and support costs.

The Academy Trust occupies land and buildings held under Church supplemental agreements. The
freehold tifles to this property are held by The Richard Crosse School Foundation, The Official
Trustes of Charity Lands (the trustea of the charity known as Colton Upited Schools} and Colton
United Schools of St Marys House. Under Church supplemental agresments the Academy Trust is
permilted oceupancy of the premises with a noice period of two years, and no rental is payable
under this arrangement. The Trustees do not consider that the Academy Trust is able to exercise
contro! over the property and therefore the property does not meet the definition of an asset of the
Academy Trust and has not baen recognised as a fixed asset in these financial statements. The
market value of the donated facilties has not been recognised in the financtal statements as the
Trustees consider that no reliable measure is available.

The Trustess have considered the use of the donations refating the use of some of the Trust's
school playing fields and do not consider the value of the donation to he material. Therafore no
income or expenditure has been recognised in the financial statements.

The Trustees have considered the treatment of catering expenditure and concluded that the elemant
that is not funded by the Universal Free School Meal Restricted Grant should be categorised as an
unrestricted cost.
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THE SMALL SCHOOQLS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee}

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

INCOME FROM DONATIONS AND CAPITAL GRANTS

Restricted
Unrestricted  Restricted fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds funds funds
2018 2018 2018 2018 2017
£ £ £ £ £
Danations 7,689 " - 7,689 5,906
Capltal Grants - 629,084 124 411 763,498 14,931
7,689 $29,084 124,411 761,184 20,837
Tolal 2017 5,906 14,831 20,837
FUNDING FOR ACADEMY'S EDUCATIONAL OPERATIONS
Unrestricted  Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
2018 2018 2018 2017
£ £ £ £
DfE/ESFA grants
General annual grant {GAG) - 1,120,867 1,120,867 1,104,066
Other DfE / ESFA grants . 138,100 138,108 116,292
- 1,258,975 1,268,976 1,220,358
Other government grants
Local authority grants - 87,016 87,016 35,582
" 87,016 87,016 35,582
Other funding
Other incoming resources 44 683 21,543 66,226 50,046
44,683 21,543 86,226 50,048
44,683 1,367,634 1,412,217 1,305,986
e —— ——————
Totaf 2017 29,620 1,276,368 1,305,986
—— 1§
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THE SMALL SCHOOLS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

{A company limlted by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

OTHER TRADING ACTIVITIES
Unrestricted  Restricted Total Tolal
funds funds funds funds
2018 2018 2018 2017
£ £ £ £
Other income 89,074 - 89,074 61,582
Hire of facilities 1,028 - 1,029 1,629
Music tuition 5433 - 6,433 8,723
95,536 . 95,638 .. 72,934
Total 2017 72,934 . 72,934
INVESTMENT INCOME . . e
Unvestricted  Restricted Total Total
funds funds - funds funds
2018 2018 2018 2017
£ £ £ £
Short tern deposits 266 - 286 205
—  — 3 ——— —— ———} 1
Total 2017 205 - 205
- —————— — ——
EXPENDITURE
Staff costs Premises Other costs Total Total
2018 2018 2048 2048 2017
£ £ £ £ £
Expanditure on fundraiging
trading 44,218 - 634 44,852 1,382
Academy's educational
operations;
Direct costs 941,151 34,856 123,957 1,099,764 1,120 132
Support costs 300,982 62,649 130,752 464,383 481,221
1,286,351 97,306 255,343 1,638,980 1,611,735
—— - — . — - P e — ———
Total 2017 1,264,801 69,167 277,767 1,611,735
—— ———— — —— — —___—
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THE SMALL SCHOOLS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

{A company Hmited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

ANALYSIS OF EXPENDITURE BY ACTIVITIES

Diract Support
costs costs Total Total
2018 2018 2018 2017
£ £ £ £
Academy's educalional oparations 1,099,764 494,383 1,694,147 1,610,353
——————————— —
Tolal 2017 1,129,132 481,221 1,610,353
Analysls of direct costs
Academy's
educational Total Total
operations 2018 2017
£ £ £
Educational supplies 54,795 54,795 81,340
Examination fees - - 2,565
Staff development 6686 6686 8,232
Other direct costs 37,757 37,757 . 37,860
Technology costs 24,818 24,818 23,247
Wages and salaries 767,829 767,629 757,300
National insuranca 67,681 87,681 75,410
Pension cost 105,841 106,941 130,608
Depreciation 34,657 34,657 32,570
1,099,764 1,099,764 1,129,132
At 31 August 2017 1,129,132 1,129,132

—_—  —ree—
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THE SMALL SCHOOLS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

T

ANALYSIS OF EXPENDITURE BY ACTIVITIES (continued)

Analysis of support costs

Pension scheme interest cost
Support staff costs
Depreciation

Recruitment and support
Maintenance of premises and equipment
Technology costs

Cleaning

Rent and rates

Insurance

Transport and sacurity
Catering

Other support costs

At 31 August 2017

NET INCOMEXEXPENDITURE)
This is stated after charging:

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets:

- owned by tha charity
Amortisation of intangible fixed assets
Auditors' remuneration - audit
Auditors' remuneration - cther services
Auditors' remuneration - assurance services
Operating lease rentals

Academy's As restated

educational Total Total

operations 2018 2017

£ £ £

13,000 13,000 11,000

300,982 300,982 293251

3,851 3,861 3,619

420 420 340

17,123 17123 16,232

10,046 10,046 5310

5,372 5372 3,138

8,316 8,316 , 10,265

18,666 18,666 22713

856 886 940

25,986 25,986 27,594

89,765 89,786 86,819

494,283 494,383 481,221
481,221 481,221

2018 2017

£ £

36,008 33,690

2,500 2,500

6,000 6,000

2,000 2,000

4,000 4,000

‘5,362 5,252
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THE SMALL SCHOOLS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

STAFF COSTS
Staff costs
Staff costs were as follows:
2018 2017
£ £
Wages and salaties 1,003,145 951,030
Social security costs 81,316 36,363
Operating costs of defined benefit pension schemes 201,801 212,641
1,286,351 1,250,034
Agency staff costs - 6,535
Staff development - 8,232
1,286,351 1,264,801
Staff numbers
The average number of persons employed by the academy during the year was as follows:
2018 2017
No. No.
Teachers 16 17
Administration and support 26 24
Managagement 5 5
a7 45
Cyrre—— e ———
Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded
£60,000 was:

2018 2017

No. No.

In the band £80,001 - £90,000 1 0
In the band £80,001 - £100,000 0 1

The above employee participated in the Teacher's Pension Scheme. During the year ended 31 August
2018 employer's pension contributions for these staff amount to £13,696 (2017: £15,165).

Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the academy trust comprise the directors and the senior management
team as listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension
contributions) received by key management personnel for their services fo the academy trust was
£333,904 {2017: £345,833).
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THE SMALL SCHOOLS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

10.

CENTRAL SERVICES
Tha academy has provided the following central services to its academies during the year:

Management and financial services

Educational services

Cateting services

Centralised insurance, IT licensing and transport costs

The academy charges for thesa sarvices on the foliowing basls:
Pupil numbers per the 2017 autumn census.

The aclual amounts charged during the year were as follows:

2018 2017
£ £
The Richard Crosse C £ Primary School 128,787 -
The St. Mary's C E Primary School ' T 84,944 -
The Howard Primary School 80,283 N
274,014
Total — ——r——
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THE SMALL SCHOOLS MULT! ACADEMY TRUST
(A company Nimited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
'FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

1.

12

13

TRUSTEES' REMUNERATION AND EXPENSES

Ona or more Trustees has been paid remuneration or has received other bensfits from an employment
with the academy trust. The Principal and other staff Trustees only receive remuneration in respsct of
services they provide undertaking the roles of principal and other staff members under their contracts of
employment, and not in respect of their role as Trustees. The value of Trusteos’ remuneration and other

benefils was as follows:

2018
£

Mr P Lovern Remuneration $0,000-85,000
Pension contributions paid 10,000-15,000

2017
£

90,000-95,000
15,000-20,000

During the ysar ended 31 August 2018, no Trustees raceived any reimbursement of expenses {2017 -
£NIL).

TRUSTEES' AND OFFICERS' INSURANCE

(n accordance with normal commercial practice the academy has purchased insurance to protect trustees
and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on academy
business. The insurance provides cover up to £5,000,000 on any one claim and the cost for the year

ended 31 August 2018 was £57 (2017 - £149).

INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Cost
At 1 September 2017 and 31 August 2015

Amotrtisation

At 1 September 2017
Charge for the year

At 31 August 2018

Carrying amount
At 31 August 2018

At 31 Augusi 2017

Computer
software
£

12,500

5,208
2,500

7,708

4,792

7,292
——r—
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THE SMALL SCHOOLS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
{A company limlted by guarantea)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

14.

15.

16.

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Cost

At 1 September 2017
Additions

At 31 August 2018

Depreclation

At 1 September 2047
Charge for the year

At 31 August 2018

Net book value
At 31 August 2018

At 31 August 2017

STOCKS

School uniform

DEBTORS

Trade deblors
Qiher debtors
Prepayments and accrued incomae

Leasehold Furniture Plant and

property and fixtures  equipment Total
£ £ £ £
977,250 42448 83,661 1,103,369
- . 84,030 64,030
977,250 42,448 147,81 1,167,388
30,107 45,492 18,841 64,430
14,850 8,490 12,988 36,008
44,857 23,972 31,808 100,438
$32,693 18,476 116,862 1,086,951
s ] _—— e
947,143 26,966 64,820 1,038,929
] b —————_ ]
2018 2017
£ £
1,450 1,450

———
2018 2017
£ £
8,481 4,456
2,006 27,739
232,638 50,762
241,124 82,957
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17.

18.

CREDITORS: Amounts falling due within one year

Trade creditors

Other taxation and social security
Other creditors

Accruals and deferred income

Deferred income

Deferred Income at 1 September 2017
Resources deferred during the year
Amounts released from previous years

Deferred income at 31 August 2018

2018 2017

£ £
20,500 33,924
23,313 19,621
22,910 19,314
104,925 52,286
174,648 125,145
———1

2018 2017

£ £
36,508 36,533
33,581 36,598
(36,533} (36,533)
93,646 36,598

Creditors includes £36,646 (2017: £36,598) of income which has been deferred during the year. The
Academy received Universal Fres School Meals Income of £22,306 (2017; £25,748) in July 2018 which
was a prepayment of income for the period September 2018 to March 2019. Other income recelived in

advance related to school trips and AEN funding.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets maasurad at amortisad cost

Financial liahilitias measurad at amortised cost

Financial assets measured at amortised cost comprises trade debtors.

2018

8,481

20,500

Financigl liabilities measured at amortised cost comprises trads creditors.

2017

4,456

33,924
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19, STATEMENT OF FUNDS
Balance at
1 Balance at
Septembor Tranafers Gaing/ 31 August
2017 Income Expenditure =  Infout {Lossas) 2018
£ £ £ £ £ £
Unrestricted funds
General Fund 173,864 148,164 {44,852) {103,531) - 173,645
Resatricted funds
General Annual Grant o
(GAG) . 1,420,867 (1,238,972} 118,105 - -
Other DIE / ESFA grants - 720,638 {138,108) - - 591,530
Local Authority grants - 124,670 {124,670} - - -
Other restricted funds - 21,543 (21,543) - , - -
Pension reserve (497,000} - {70,000) T - 99,000 (468,000)
(497,000) 1,996,618 {1,593,193) 148,105 99,000 123,530
Restricted fixed asset funds
DfE / ESFA capital grants 81,869 115,381 {12,341) {14,674) - 170,136
Transfer on conversion 857,822 - {18,211) - - 939,611
Other capital axpenditure 21,305 9,030 {7,956) - - 22,378
1,060,796 124,411 (38,508} {14,674) - 1,132,126
Total restricted funds 563,796 2,121,029 (1,631,701 103,531 99,000 1,255,658
Total of funds 737,660 2,269,193  (1,678,563) - 98,000 1,429,300

e B —— B

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

Restricted funds
These comprise all restricted funds other than restricted fixed asset funds and include grants from The
Educsation & Skills Funding Agency and local authorities, which are used for charitable purposes.

The other DIE/ESFA grants balance at 31 August 2018 consists entlrely of Condition Improvement Fund
(CIF) capital grant received In respect of properly occupied under supplemental agreement,

The pension reserve relates to the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS).

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the academy trust was not subject to a limit on
the amount of GAG that it could camy forward at 31 August 2018.

Unrestricted funtls
These comprise resources that may be used towards meeting any of the charitable objects of the
academy trust at the discretion of the trustees.
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19.

STATEMENT OF FUNDS {continued)

Restricted fixed asset funds

These comprise resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by The
Education & Skills Funding Agency and local authorities where the asset acquired or created is held for a
specific purpose.

Transfers betwaen unrestricted funds and restricted funds relate to charitable expenditure being in
excess of restricted income,

ANALYSIS OF ACADEMIES BY FUND BALANCE
Fund balances at 31 August 2018 were allocated as follows:

Total Tolal

2018 2017

£ £

The Richard Crosse C E Primary School . o 720,539 115,145
The St. Mary's C E Primary School 86,838 58,464
The Howard Primary School ' - (61,302) " {26,010)
Central sarvices - 28,265
Total before fixed asset fund and pension reserva 785,178 173,864
Restricted fixed asset fund 1,132,126 1,060,796
Pension reserve (468,000) {497,000)
Total 1,429,300 737,660

The following academy is carrying a net deficit on its portion of the funds as follows;

Name of academy Amount of deficit
£
The Howard Primary Schoof {51,302)

The deficit at The Howard Primary School is due to long term sickness, recruitment issues and SEN
issues which caused significant unexpected additional cosls.

The academy is taking the following action to return the academies to surplus:

These issues have now been resolved. The Board has taken the decision that where an individual échool
is temporarily in deficit, the MAT will use its reserves to support until such time as the deficit is cleared.
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19. STATEMENT OF FUNDS {continued)

ANALYSIS OF ACADEMIES BY COST
Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:

Teaching
and Other costs
aeducational Other exciuding
support support Educational depreciat- Total Tolst
staff coats  staff costs supplies © jon 2018 2017
£ £ £ £ £ £
The Richard
CrossaCE -
Primary School 390,121 75,210 22,805 99,641 587,647 679,241
The St. MarysCE
Primary Schoo! 248,763 48,335 15,937 52,007 362,042 409,964
The Howard
Primary School 203,912 25,120 14,976 56,227 301,235 372,841
Central sarvices 101,354 145,124 3,768 68,879 317,122 113,501
941,150 204,789 67,483 274624 1,568,048 1,575,547
p—————} p—- - —— b —————————1 e —— p————— f—————]
STATEMENT OF FUNDS - PRIOR YEAR
Balance sl Balance al
1 September Transfers Gainsy 31 August
2016 income Expendilure infout (Lossas) 2017
£ £ £ £ £ £
General funds
Genaral Fund 284,802 108,665 (61,248)  (158,355) - 173,854
Restricted funds
General Annual Grant
(GAG) 3,339 1,104,066 (1,265760) 158,355 - -
Olher DIE / ESFA grants 5589 116,292 (121,881) - - -
Local Authority grants - 35,682 (35,682) - - -
Other rastricted funds 8,649 20426 {29,078) - - -
Pansion reserve (508,600) - {62,000) - 73,000 (497,600)
(450,423) 1,276,366 {1,514,298) 158,355 73,000 {497,000)
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19. STATEMENT OF FUNDS {continued)

Restricted fixed asset funds

DIfE / ESFA capital grants 80,433 14,831 {13,695) - - 81,669

Transfer on conversion 975,123 - {17.301) - - 957,822

Other capital expenditure 26,498 - (5,193} - - 21,305

1,082,054 14,931 (36,189} - - 1,060,796

Total restricted funds 501,631 1,201,297  (1,550,487) 158,356 73,000 563,796

Total of funds 576,433 1,399,962 (1,611,735) - 73.000 737,660
re— — — e —

A CURRENT YEAR 12 MONTHS AND PRIOR YEAR 12 MONTHS GOMBINED POSITION IS AS FOLLOWS:

Balance at
1 Balance at
September Transfors Galns/ 31 August
2016 Income Expendlfure Infout (Losses) 2014
£ £ £ £ £ £
Unrastricted funds
General Fund 284,802 256,829 (106,100}  (261,886) - 173,645
Restrlcted funds
General Annual Grant g
(GAG) 3339 2224933 {2,504,732) 276,460 - -
Other DIE / ESFA grants 5,589 845,930 (259,989) - - 591,830
Local Authority grants - 160,152 (160,152) . - .
Other restricted funds 8,649 41,959 {50,618) - - .
Pansion reserve {508,000} - {132,000) - 172,000 {468,060)
(490,423} 3,272,984 (3,107,491} 276,460 172,000 123,530
Restricted fixed asset funds
DfE / ESFA capital grants 80,433 130,312 (26,035) (14,574} - 170,135
Transfer on converaion 975,123 . {35,512) - - 939,611
Other capital expenditure 25,498 9,030 {13,149} - - 22,379
1,082,054 139,342 {74,697} {14,574} . 1,132,125
591,631 3412328 (3,182 188} 261,886 172,000 1,255,655
Totat of funds 876,433 3,669,155 (3,288,288) - 172,000 1,429,300
] e —— — ————————| E———]
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20, ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS
Restricted

Unrestricted Restricted flxed asset Total

funds funds funds funds

2018 2018 2018 2018

£ £ £ £

Intangible fixed assats - - 4,192 4,792
Tangible fixed assels - - 1,066,951 1,086,951
Current assels 173,645 763,178 60,382 997,206
Creditors due within one year - {174,648) - (171,648)
Provisions for liabilities and charges - (488,000) . (468,000)

173,645 423,530 1,132,125 1,428,300

ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS - PRIOR YEAR

Unrostricted  Restricted  Restriclad Total

funds funds fixed assst Junds

' funds )

2017 2017 . 2017 2017

£ £ g £

Intangible fixed assels - - 7,292 7,292
Tangible fixed assets - - 1,038,929 1,038,929
Current assets 173,864 125,145 14,875 313,584
Creditors due within one year - {125,145) - {125,145}
Provisions for liabilities and charges - {497,000) - {497,000
175,664  (497.0000 1,060,796 737,660

———1 p—————————§ ——————] =

21. RECONCILIATION OF NET MOVEMENT IN FUNDS TO NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING

ACTIVITIES

2018 2017
£ £

Net ipgomef{expendilure) for the year (as per Statement of Financial
Activitias) 592,640 (211,773)
Ad]ustment for:
Dapreciation charges 38,508 36,190
Investment income (256) {205}
Decrease in debtors 32744 34,991
Decrease in creditors {8,497) {41,246)
Capital grants from DfE and other capital incoma (744,4685) (14,931)
Defined benefit pension schame cost less contributions payable 57,000 51,000
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cast 13,000 11,000
Net cash used in operating activities (19,326} {134,974)

e ______]
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22,

23,

24,

ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2018 2017
£ £
Cash in hand 754,631 229,177
Total 754,821 229,177
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
At 31 August 2018 the academy had capital commitments as follows:
2018 2017
£ £
Contracted for but not provided in these financial statements 591,803 -

PENSION COMMITMENTS

The acaderny’s employees belong fo two principal pension schemes: the Teacher's Pension Scheme for
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related stalf; and the Local Government Pengion Scheme
(LGPS) for ron-teaching staff, which is managed by Staffordshire Pension Fund. Both are Multi-
employer defined benefit pension schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2012 and of the LGPS 31
March 2018,

Contributions amounting to £22,127 were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2018 (2017 - £19,314)
and ara included within craditors,

Teachers' Pension Scheme
Introduction

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, conlributory, dsfined benefit scheme, govemed by
ihe Teachers' Pensions Regulations (2010) and, from 1 April 2014, by the Teachers' Pension Scheme
Regulstions 2014. Membership is automatic for full-ime teachers in academies and, from 1 January
2007, automatic for teachers in part-time employment following appointment or a change of contrag,
although they are able to opt aut.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and members contribute on a ‘pay as you go' basis — these
<ontributions along with those made by employers are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other
pension benefits are paid by public funde provided by Parlisment.

Valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Schems

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal scluarial review of the
TPS in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions
2014 published by HM Treasury. The aim of the review is to specify the level of fulure contributions.
Actuarial scheme valuations are dependant on assumptions about the value of fulire costs, design of
benefits and many other factors. The fatest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March
2012 and in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions
2014, The valvation report was published by the Department for Education on 9 June 2014. The key
elements of the valualion and subsequent consultation are;
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PENSION COMMITMENTS (continued)

« employer contribution rates set al 16.48% of pensionable pay, including a 0.08% employer
administration charge. :

« total scheme liabilities {pensions currently in payment and the estimated cast of future benefits) for
gervice to the effective date of £191,500 million, and nolional assets (estimated fulure contributions
tagether with the notional Investments held at the valuation date) of £476,600 million giving a notlonal
past service deficit of £14,900 million )
an employer cost cap of 10.9% of pensionable pay will be applied to future valuations
the assumed real rate of return is 3.0% in excess of prices and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of
real earnings growth is assumed to ba 2.75%. The assumed nominal rate of ratum is 5.06%.

The TPS valuation for 2012 determined an employer rate of 16.4%, which was payable from September
2015. The next valuation of the TPS Is currently undenway based on April 2016 data, whereupon the
employer contribution rate is expected to be reassessed and will be payable from 1 April 201 9.

The employer’s pension costs paid to TPS in the period amou nted to £101,944 (2017 - £103,895).

A capy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions website
(wv.w.teacherspensions.oo.ukfnwsfemployersfzm4!06!publication-of-tha-va!uation—mpoﬂ:aspx}. '

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is a multi-employer pension scheme. The trust has
accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The trust has
set out abave the information available an the scheme.

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined bensfit scheme, wilh assets held in separate trustee-administered funds.
The tota) contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2018 was £86,000 (2017 - £72,000), of which
employer's contributions totalled £69,000 (2017 - £57,000) and employees’ contributions totalled £17,000
(2017 - £15,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years are 20.2% for employers and 5.5%
12.5% for employees.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee ihat, in the
event of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Schema liabilities would be met by the
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.

Principal actuarial assumptions.

2018 2017
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 280 % 250%
Rate of increase in salaries 280 % 280 %
Rate of increase for pensions in payment / inflation 240 % 240%
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PENSION COMMITMENTS {continued)

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvemants in mortality rates.
The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

2018 2017
Retlring today
Males 221 22.1
Famales , 244 24.4
Retiring in 20 years
Males 241 24.1
Famales 28.4 26.4
The academy's share of the assets In the scheme was:
Fair value at Fair value al
31 August 31 August
2018 7 2017
£ £
Equities 391,000 340,000
Corporate bonds 106,000 54,000
Property 45,000 36,000
Cash and other liquid assetls 17,000 18,000
Total market value of assets 559,000 448,000
] = —————J

The actual return on scheme assets was £21,000 (2017 - £72,000).

The amounts recagnised in the Statement of financial activities incorporating income and expenditure
account are as follows:

2018 2017

£ £

Current service cost (126,000) {108,000}
interest income 12,000 7,000
Interest cost (25,000) {18,600)
Total {139,000) {118,000
—— 3 . ——]
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24'

25,

26,

PENSION COMMITMENTS (continuad)

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation were as follows:

2018 2017
£ £
Opening defined benefit obligation 845,000 809,000
Current service cost 126,000 108,000
interest cost 25,000 18,000
Employee contributions 17,000 15,600
Actuarial {gains)losass {78,000) (1,000}
Benefits paid (8,000} {4,000)
Closing defined benefit obligation 1,027,000 945,000
———————1 = —
Movements In the fair value of the adademy’s share of scheme assets:
2018 2017
£ £
Opening fair value of schema assets 448,000 301,000
{nterest income 12,000 7,000
Acluarial gains 21,000 72,000
Employer contributions 69,000 57,000
Employee contributiona 17,000 15,000
Benefits paid (8,000) {4,000)
Closing fair vaius of scheme assets 559,000 448,000

QPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At 31 August 2018 the total of the Academy trust's future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases was:

2018 2017
£ £

Amounts payable:
Within 1 year 1,484 1,673
Betwesn 1 2nd 5 years 820 2,860
Total 2,004 4,433

ee————e— e

MEMBERS' LIABILITY

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the
evant of it being wound up while hefshe is a membar, or wilhin one year after he/she ceases 10 be a
member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £ 10 for the debts and liabiities contracted
bafore he/she ceases to be a member.
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27,

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Owing to the nature of the academy trust and the compostition of the board of trustees being drawn from
local public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which
Trustees have an interest, All transactions involving such arganisations are conducted in accordance with
the requirements of the AFH and with the trust's financial regulations and normal procurement
procedures relating to connected and related party transactions.

No related party fransactions took place in the peried of account, other than cerain trustees'
remuneration and expenses already disclosed in note 11. s

An amount of £3,853 (2017: £2,056) was spent with Principal HR Parinér Limitad. The Director of this
business is also one of the Directors of The Small Schools Mulli Academy Trust. The amount outstanding
is £nif (2017: £nif). In entering into the transaction the academy trust has complied with the requirements
of the Academies Financial Handbook 2017, The element above £2,500 has been provided 'at no more
than cost' and Principal HR Partner Limited has provided a statement of assurance confirming this.

An amount of £1,000 (2017: £1,500) was spent with Educational Consultancy Limited for educatianal
consultancy work. The Director of the business is a member of The Small Schools Multi Academy Trust.
The amount outstanding is £nil (2017: Enil).

During the year the Trust paid employee benafits (including employer pension contributions) to close
family members of key management personnel and trustees for their services to the Trust of £17,747
{2017: £nil).
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